A. Identity of Petitioner 

Ron Clipse is the petitioner and plaintiff in Superior Court. 

B. Court of Appeals Decision 

Mr. Clipse seeks review of Division Two's published opinion. 

C. Overview Of Issues On Review 

Division Two conflicts Supreme Court authority and Division One. 

The first issue is of first impression for this court: the application 

of RCW 49.52, et. seq., to claims based on RCW 49.60, et. seq., 

Washington's Law Against Discrimination. (WLAD). 

RCW 49.52 is violated when an employer willfully fails to pay a 

wage when the obligation to pay is imposed by "any statute." 

The WLAD is a statute imposing an obligation to pay a wage 

without regard to protected class or discriminatory animus. 

Division Two held RCW 49.52 does not apply to depriving a wage 

in violation of the WLAD because the WLAD imposes no duty to pay the 

wage "until the jury reached a verdict on damages." Opinion, p. 7. 

Division Two held the duty to not fail to pay for a discriminatory reason 

does "not accrue until the jury reaches a verdict." Opinion, p. 6. That 

turns the WLAD on its head and gives no force to RCW 49.52. 

An employer's obligation not to discriminate does not "accrue" 

only after a verdict. It is always present. It exists if no suit is filed. A 



verdict only determines the damage caused by the breach. 

Similarly, an employer's obligation not to deprive a wage for a 

discriminatory reason, imposed by the WLAD, does not "accrue" only 

after verdict. It is always present. It exists if no suit is filed. A verdict 

only determines the damage caused by violating the duty. 

There is no reason or language to treat the obligation imposed by 

the WLAD to not deprive a wage differently from any other wage 

obligation imposed by statute. Yet, Division Two's decision does that. 

RCW 49.52 is a perfect, synergistic fit with RCW 49.60 because it 

will not be available to every WLAD plaintiff; but, only where plaintiff 

proves a willful failure to pay. An employee willfully deprived a wage 

protected the WLAD is no less injured than an employee denied overtime. 

The second issue arises out of Mr. Clipse's post trial motion for 

RCW 49.60 fees. He filed his motion September 11 for hearing September 

20; a day the Court asked it to be heard. Respondents contend it should 

have been filed September 9 but did not dispute the hearing date was 

identical; September 20. 

The Trial Court found Mr. Clipse's RCW 49.60 fee motion late 

and refused to extend time to file under CR 6(b) for excusable neglect. 

There was no prejudice to respondent or the process by the filing. 

The motion was filed 2 days late (1.5 if time stamps are considered) for 
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hearing the same day. Giving no weight to the lack of prejudice or reasons 

offered by Mr. Clipse, the Trial Court explicitly said it would not extend 

time because the deadline for a post trial fee motion is "absolute," no 

different than for a "notice of appeal" or "statute of limitation." Division 

Two affirmed articulating a rule of excusable neglect devoid of 

consideration of a lack of prejudice. That squarely contradicts Goucher v. 

JR Simplot, 104 Wn.2d 662, 665 (1985) and Division One in O'Neil v. 

City of Shoreline, 183 Wn.App. 15 (2014). 

Omitting any reference to the Trial Court's basis for ruling and the 

total absence of prejudice/ Division Two held the standard of excusable 

neglect is whatever Trial Courts in "their discretion" decide it is. Opinion, 

p. 9. Not only does that conflict with authority, it is tantamount to 

announcing there is no rule at all. 

Discretion refers to the discretionary application of facts to a 

standard of law. Discretion does not refer to a Court determining what the 

law or standard is. A Court uses discretion applying facts to ER 403 to 

determine the admission of evidence. But, exercising that discretion does 

Division Two fails to identify the timing of the motion, that it was at most two days 
off, it did not effect when the motion was heard, and was noted for a day the Trial 
Court wanted it on. While not every fact must be stated, omitting material facts the 
presence of which would lead to a different result is unfair. Division Two also 
incorrectly states the Court denied the motion to extend "because Clipse did not 
explain why he filed late." Not only is that incorrect, Division Two discussed at 
length what the reason was. Opp. p. 8-9. The opinion is internally contradictory. 
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not allow the Court to determine what the standard of relevance is. Saying 

excusable neglect is what the Trial Courts say it is, is the same thing. 

Discretion does not extend to each Judge determining what the law is. 

That renders us a society of men/women, not law. When discretion is 

used, as under CR 6(b ), it still bound by law. There is ample law on this 

issue that both the Trial Court and Division gave no weight to- at all. 

The opinion is also error because its effect is prejudice need not 

even be considered. The word prejudice is not even said in passing.2 

Crafting an opinion to avoid a determinative fact is (1) unfair to the party 

when that fact yields a different result and (2) results in erroneous case 

law because affirming for excusable neglect while not mentioning 

prejudice creates law a party may correctly cite for the proposition 

prejudice need not be considered at all: Division Two did not. 

Finally, it was an abuse of discretion to not extend time. The 

Court applied the wrong standard. Additionally, the filing was at most 2 

days late and noted for a day the Court asked no differently than if filed 

timely. Mr. Clipse articulated reasons explaining the timing the Trial 

Court did not find to be bad faith. Mr. Clipse does not ask for a bright line 

rule 2 days late can never be too late. However, given the facts it was an 

abuse of discretion to deny Mr. Clipse his fees and costs in this manner. 

A word search reveals it is not stated even one time. 
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D. Issues Presented For Review 

1. Whether the Trial Court and Division Two erred 
finding RCW 49.52, et. seq., does not apply to wage 
claims arising under the WLAD. 

2. Whether the Trial Court erred striking Mr. Clipse's 
motion for fees and costs under RCW 49.60. 

3. Whether excusable neglect is present when the 
motion was filed September 11th instead of the 9th 
for the same hearing date as if filed on the 9th and 
(a) respondent suffered no prejudice, (b) the process 
suffered no prejudice, and (c) Mr. Clipse articulated 
good faith reasons for the timing of his filing. 

4. Whether Division Two erred affirming striking Mr. 
Clipse's RCW 49.60 fee and cost motion. 

E. Facts 

Mr. Clipse sued for disability discrimination under RCW 49.60. 

( CP 1-7) The Complaint alleged his wage was protected by RCW 49.60 

and CDS "willfully" deprived him it in violation of RCW 49.52, et. seq. 

(CP 1-7). The jury found CDS deprived Mr. Clipse $79,300 in wages 

respondents were obligated to pay by the WLAD. CP 472-473. 

The Trial Court dismissed Mr. Clipse's RCW 49.52 claim on 

directed verdict. CDS only argued Mr. Clipse had not earned a wage, 

asserting RCW 49.52 only applies to back wages. CP 941-952. 

Mr. Clipse presented an Order of Judgment post-verdict 

"reserving" his fees. (CP 474). The Court signed the order on August 28 
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(the last trial day) without exception taken by CDS. (8/23, 12). 

The Trial Court had colloquy regarding when a fee motion could 

be heard saying not for at least two weeks because of scheduling; the 

Court: "13th, don't set it for the 13th. The 13th is going to be a crazy busy 

docket as well. So I would suggest that it be the 20th or 2ih." Id. 

Mr. Clipse filed his fee motion September 11 for hearing 

September 20. (CP 498-603, 475, 476-497). 

CDS moved to strike the motion as late. (CP 604-607, 608-618). 

CDS argued it should have been filed September 9, not September 11. Id. 

Mr. Clipse argued the Order indicating fees were "reserved" 

extended time to file but if not he moved to extend time under CR 6(b )(2) 

for "excusable neglect." (CP 619-643, 644-695) He presented evidence 

and argument coloring it. Id. 

CDS identified no prejudice extending time to file (the hearing was 

the same day) to it or the process.3 (CP 696-706) Instead, it replied late is 

late and time can not be extended, arguing the deadline was no different 

than for appeal or trial de novo; it is absolute. Id. The Trial Court agreed. 

Finding the motion deadline was absolute: 

Court: ... We have these rules, here is the rule, you didn't 
meet it. I mean, there's certain absolutes. Statute 

In candor, at oral argument CDS asserted prejudice because of an "interest in 
finality." CDS did not explain how a two day delay filing a motion for hearing the 
same day the Court indicated it wanted it heard prejudiced "finality." 
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of limitations, if you don't file within the three 
years, it doesn't matter if you were -

Bridges: But you're comparing apples to oranges. Those 
are situations where by the rules you cannot even 
consider enlarging the time, you cannot by the 
rules and by the case law. So I suggest you are 
dragging in baggage to this motion that is not 
present. 

(09/20/13, 23-24). The Court ruled: 

Court: motion granted. I find 54( d) -- I agree this is a harsh 
result with a modest missed date, but it seems to me it is 
analogous to notices of appeal, statutes of limitation, it is 
absolute ... 

Id. 26-27. That is the wrong standard. Division Two affirmed. 

F. Argument 

1. The Criteria For Review 

Division Two's opinion implicates RAP 13.4(b); the decision: 

(1) ... Is m conflict with a decision of the Supreme 
Court; 

(2) .. .is in conflict with another decision of the Court of 
Appeals; and 

( 4) .. .involves an Issue of substantial public interest 
that should be determined by the Supreme Court. 

2. Not Applying RCW 49.52 To The Obligation To Pay A 
Wage Under RCW 49.60 Conflicts Supreme Court 
Decisions And Is Bad Law 

RCW 49.52.050 applies when an employer fails to pay a wage 

"such employer is obligated to pay such employee by any statue, 

7 



ordinance, or contract." RCW 49.52.050(2) and Schilling v. Radio 

Holdings, 136 Wn.2d 152, 159 (1998). "The statute must be liberally 

construed to advance the Legislature's intent to protect employee wages 

and assure payment." Id. 

Division Two's holding conflicts Schilling by giving RCW 49.50 a 

narrow construction that does not "protect employee wages (or) ensure 

payment." It conflicts the statute and Supreme Court decisions finding the 

WLAD protects wages. 

Division Two held the WLAD does not apply to RCW 49.52 

because the WLAD imposes no obligation to pay as that duty does "not 

accrue until the jury reaches a verdict." Division Two went as far to say 

the WLAD imposes "no preexisting duty to pay." Opinion, p. 6. 

The WLAD imposes a preexisting duty to not refuse to pay for 

discriminatory reasons. Schilling. It requires no verdict to "accrue" that 

duty. It exists at all times. A verdict only determines the damage caused 

by the violation of the duty that already occurred. Finding the WLAD 

imposes no duty to not fail to pay a wage for a discriminatory reason 

directly conflicts Schilling and the statute's language.4 

4 CDS argued RCW 49.52 does not apply to "back wages" owed between discharge 
and verdict. Back wages are for work not done but would have been but for illegal 
termination. Allstot v. Edwards, 114 Wn.App. 625, 633 (2002) rejected the 
argument, including back wages with RCW 49.52 because the statute's broad use of 
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The WLAD "declares that practices of discrimination... threaten 

not only the rights and proper privileges of its inhabitants but menaces the 

institutions and foundation of a free democratic state." RCW 49.60.010. 

The WLAD "shall be construed liberally for the accomplishment of' its 

purposes. RCW 49.60.020. The Legislature declared a statutory right to 

"obtain and hold employment without discrimination." RCW 49.60.030. 

The WLAD protects an employee's wages; it creates an obligation 

to pay them without regard to protected class. See Xieng v. Peoples Bank, 

120 Wn.2d 512, 531 (1993), Blaney v lnt'l Ass'n of Machinists, 115 

Wn.App. 80, 97 (2002). That cannot be disputed. 

Division Two finding there is no duty to pay without regard to 

protected class detaches the right to "obtain and hold employment" 

without regard to protected class from the right to be paid for employment 

without regard to protected class. Those are not detachable rights. Supra. 

The raison d'etre of employment is to be paid.5 A statute 

prohibiting discharge (or failure to hire) because of a discriminatory 

reason is a statute obligating an employer to not deprive a wage for a 

discriminatory reason. That creates a right of the employee guaranteeing 

his wage- and imposes an obligation within RCW 49.52 on the employer 

the word "wage" includes both earned and unearned wages deprived in violation of 
statute. 
This is not intended to diminish volunteerism; it is relied this Court sees the point. 
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to not refuse to pay because of discrimination. It does not even require 

"liberally construing" the statues as required by RCW 49.60.020 and 

Schilling to find that; it is their plain meaning. 

The result urged by Mr. Clipse and why this Court should accept 

review was explained by the dissent in Hemmings v. Tidyman's, Inc., 285 

F.3d 1174 (91
h Cir. 2002). The dissent noted nothing in either statute 

indicates they are "exclusive remedies" and to not apply RCW 49.52 to 

the WLAD is contrary to "liberally construing" them. Id. 

Division Two cited Hemmings ratifying its holding but Hemmings 

was in error finding the WLAD does not apply to RCW 49.52 because, 

according to it, "Washington Courts have not extended (the statute) to 

situations where employers violate anti-discrimination statutes." Id. at 

1203. It failed to mention the issue had not come up yet. 

The majority said it would apply the WLAD to RCW 49.52 if it 

had language an employer "who violates any statute is subject to double 

damages." Id. at 1203 (underlined added). As the dissent pointed out, 

RCW 49.52 says exactly that, making it a violation for failing to pay a 

wage the employer must pay "by any statute." RCW 49.52.050(2). 

Hemming's dissent explains the issue: 

This conclusion (that the WLAD imposes no duty to pay) 
ignores the plain terms of Washington state law. 
Washington law obligates employers to pay equal wages 
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and compensate workers whose wages have been paid in a 
discriminatory manner. (The WLAD) ... prohibits wage 
discrimination ... (and) provides that a (plaintiff) is "entitled 
to recover in a civil action the full amount of compensation 
that she would have received had she not been 
discriminated against." Thus, (the WLAD) read in 
conjunction with RCW § 49.52.050 and RCW § 49.52.070, 
establishes the right to double damages for wages withheld 
from Lamphiear on account of (discrimination). 

Id. at 1205. 

Division Two also relied on Allstot v. Edwards, 114 Wn.App. 625 

(2002). According to Division Two, Allstot held no duty to pay attaches 

until a jury verdict. Opinion, p. 7. That was true in Allstot but Division 

Two gave no weight to the fact in Allstot the employer originally had a 

bona fide dispute for not paying based on its belief plaintiff engaged in 

misconduct. As an initial matter the employer did not violate RCW 

49.52.050 not paying. Later, the employer lost in litigation but still refused 

to pay. Allstot held once the judicial result was reached the obligation to 

pay accrued therefore willfully continuing to refuse to pay violated RCW 

49.52.050. 

Division Two concluded Allstot's wage was within CR 49.52.050 

only because "the employer had stipulated to the payment," e.g., the 

amount. That is error. Allstot did mention the employer agreed on the 

amount of wage if owed but the reason RCW 49.52 was implicated was 

because the duty to pay attached by the prior verdict. RCW 49.52 does not 
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protect only wages that can be calculated with mathematical certainty; it 

protects wages protected by statute. Math is math. 

At most it might be said when an employer has a bona fide dispute 

over paying it requires a verdict to affix the duty to pay. However, that is 

only because the employer did not violate RCW 49.52 in the first place. 

In Allstot, it was not that the duty to pay was affixed only because of a 

verdict; it was that originally the employer did not violate the duty. But, 

having lost the litigation the duty to pay "accrued" and the employer 

violated RCW 49.52 by continuing to not pay. Merely because the facts in 

Allstot lead to the conclusion there was no duty to pay until a judicial 

decision does not mean that must always be true. 

Interpretation of the interplay between these two sweepmg 

statutory schemes is something this Court is uniquely suited for. Division 

Two narrowly applied the WLAD and RCW 49.52, contrary to this 

Court's holdings, and it does so for no stated or good reason. 

The only way the opinion can be reconciled with the WLAD or 

RCW 49.52 is to find the WLAD imposes no duty to pay a wage. But 

clearly it does. Division Two finding the duty to pay "a specific wage" 

does not arise until verdict because the wage was not known until the 

verdict eviscerates the protection of the WLAD and is a distinction 

without distinction because that may be said in every case. By Division 
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Two's logic, RCW 49.52 does not apply to minimum wage claims because 

the final calculation must await a jury there as well. 

A verdict does not "affix" the duty. The Legislature affixed the 

duty. Nor does a verdict "accrue" breach or damage. Breach and damage 

accrued when the employer deprived the wage for a discriminatory reason 

in violation of statute. To even consider the verdict as having anything to 

do with duty, breach, or damage is to read into RCW 49.52 language not 

only absent, but is contrary to its intention and rule to broadly construe it. 

The rule urged follows the statute and furthers the Legislature's 

stated intent of both the WLAD and RCW 49.52.050. RCW 49.52.050 

will not be automatically available in every WLAD case; but, only in 

those where the WLAD violation was "willful" in the context of RCW 

49.52.050. That is good public policy; it provides enhanced collectability 

and greater deterrence in situations of willful misconduct via personal 

accountability by the decision maker as RCW 49.52 intended to provide. 

This Court should accept review and resolve the issue. 

3. Division Two's Opinion On Excusable Neglect 
Abrogates The Issue Of Prejudice, Conflicts Authority, 
And Is Fundamentally Flawed 

The opinion conflicts with the Supreme Court and Division One. 

But, it is also incorrect to such a degree that even absent conflict of 

authority this Court should accept review. 
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J 

A. DIVISION TWO'S OPINION CONFLICTS 
THE SUPREME COURT AND DIVISION ONE 

Division Two's holding took and requires no consideration of 

prejudice. It held the rule is what "Trial Courts decide it is." Opinion 9. 

Not requiring much less not even mentioning prejudice it created a 

standard where prejudice need not be considered and the standard of what 

constitutes excusable neglect is ad hoc. 

Division One in O'Neil with the same facts here reached the 

opposite result and unlike Division Two required prejudice to deny a 

motion. Citing Goucher, O'Neil held opposing an extension oftime under 

excusable neglect "requires a showing of prejudice." O'Neil, 183 

Wn.App. at 22. To show prejudice, citing Goucher: 

A party establishes prejudice by showing a lack of actual 
notice, a lack of time to prepare for the motion, and no 
opportunity to provide countervailing oral argument and 
submit case authority. 

Id. Division Two cited O'Neil for the standard of abuse of discretion but 

conflicts its standard of prejudice to oppose excusable neglect. 

This Court in Goucher held when CR 6( d) is raised to extend a 

missed deadline, the adverse party must be prejudiced to refuse to extend 

time. Goucher, 104 Wn.2d at 665. In response to a late filed motion, 

when the adverse party "was able to provide countervailing oral argument 

and to submit case authority in support of (its) position" there is no 
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prejudice and time should be extended. Id.6 

The Trial Court and Division Two erred, conflicting the Supreme 

Court and Division One by not considering the lack of prejudice. That is 

sufficient. Review should be accepted. But, this is also the national rule. 

Mr. Clipse cited authority, national and Federal, in too great of 

detail to identify here, consistent with O'Neil and Goucher. That authority 

is described by Hartman v. United Bank Card, Inc., 291 FRD 591 (WD 

Wash 2013) addressing "excusable neglect" under FRCP 6 that is in all 

respects identical to CR 6 holding: 

The court considers four factors: (1) the danger of 
prejudice to the non-moving party, (2) the length of delay 
and its potential impact on judicial proceedings, (3) the 
reason for the delay, including whether it was within the 
reasonable control of the movant, and ( 4) whether the 
moving party's conduct was in good faith. 

Id. at 595. (citing Pioneer Inv. Services Co. v. Brunswick Associates Ltd. 

Partnership, 507 U.S. 380, 113 S.Ct. 1489 (1993)). 

Division Two rejected Federal law saying it "does not apply" 

because "instead, courts in Washington use their discretion in applying CR 

6." Opinion, p. 9. District Court use discretion too. Division Two 

6 Goucher involved an appeal from a granted motion to extend time and the issue most 
precisely stated was whether that order should be reversed with Goucher saying 
"no," if there was no prejudice. Arguably a party might try to use that to distinguish 
Goucher. That would not be well taken: (1) If prejudice was not an important 
consideration for the Trial Court it would similarly have had no need to be 
considered on appeal. (2) Division One in O'Neill applied Goucher to the exact 
situation in this case as cited above. 
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minimized Mr. Clipse's argument saying it was merely that the Trial Court 

"abused its discretion ... because it failed to apply four discrete elements" 

discussed by Federal law. That is a straw man. Division Two gave no 

weight that those so-called "four discrete elements" are essentially the 

same elements required by Goucher and O'Neill. 

Division Two erred giving federal authority no weight. People's 

Bank v. Hickey, 55 Wn.App. 367, 371 (1989) and Washburn v. City of 

Federal Way, 169 Wn.App. 588, 615 (2012). Albeit, it is suggested 

Division Two did not even give O'Neill or Goucher weight. The opinion 

conflicts established authority. Review should be accepted. 

B. THE TRIAL COURT ABUSED ITS 
DISCRETION 

A Trial Court abuses its discretion by applying the wrong legal 

standard. Dix v. ICT Group, Inc., 160 Wn.2d 826, 833 (2007). 

There can be no dispute the Trial Court applied the wrong legal 

standard. Although the Court said it understood the standard under CR 

6(b) is excusable neglect, it also said it believed a post trial fee motion is 

"analogous to notices of appeal, statutes of limitation, it is absolute ... " 

(RP 9/20113, 26-27). Neither the fee motion deadline or CR 6(b) IS 

"absolute." An "absolute" standard abrogates excusable neglect. 

However, even if the Court applied the correct standard it was an 
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abuse of discretion not to have extended time. It is not Mr. Clipse's 

intention to minimize the 10 day rule of CR 54, but under CR 6(b) and 

excusable neglect the timing of filing made no difference. The motion was 

filed September 11 for hearing September 20. If the motion was filed at 

4:30 September 9 it would have made no difference; it still would have 

been heard September 20. There was no prejudice. 

Mr. Clipse articulated a meaningful reason for his timing: he 

believed language the issue was "reserved" extended time. The Court 

indicated when it wanted the motion heard and Mr. Clipse noted it for 

hearing accordingly. The Court disagreed language "reserving" the motion 

extended time but did not find Mr. Clipse was being sharp or acted in bad 

faith. He included the language for a reason; saying nothing the timeline 

was 10 days. Why say anything if it meant nothing. 

That the Trial Court disagreed with how Mr. Clipse read the order 

does not compel finding - not made by the Trial Court- he was frivolous. 

Ha v. Signal Elc. Inc., 182 Wn.App. 436, 451 (2014) held a "genuine 

misunderstanding" demonstrates excusable neglect. 

Not extending time was also an abuse of discretion because the 

result requires applying the Civil Rules in a strained manner, 

inconsistently with the intention of the WLAD. 

The CR 54(d) 10 day rule was intended "to prevent parties from 
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. .. .. 

raising trial-level attorney fee issues very late in the appellate process," 4 

W APRAC 54, not to create the equivalent of a jurisdictional prohibition 

on a par with notices of appeal. Applying CR 54( d) as the Court did is the 

epitome of a "mechanical" application of a Rule deadline "to deprive a 

litigant of costs to which he is justly entitled or to enrich a litigant with 

costs that he has unjustly secured." Mitchell v. Washington State Institute 

of Public Policy, 153 Wn.App. 803, 823 (2009). It is contrary to the 

intention of the WLAD to provide full compensation. 

Granted, at a point too late may be too late even with minimal 

prejudice. However, it is an abuse of discretion to draw the line of "too 

late is too late" over the difference between 4:30 pm September 9, and 

9:00am September 11 with the same hearing date. It achieves nothing. It 

places form over substance. It may punish counsel but it provides a 

discriminatory employer a windfall for no reason. Mitchell, supra. 

In candor to the Court, besides saying the time for a fee motion is 

"absolute" no different than to file a notice of appeal, the Court said it 

thought reasons like "my child was sick; I was in the hospital; I went on 

honeymoon" might be sufficient. (RP, 09/20/13, 22). However, that only 

makes it more clear the Court applied the wrong standard by (1) not 

considering the counter balance of no prejudice and (2) reducing

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