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

IV. ARGUMENT 

A. The Requirements of RAP 13 .4(b) Are Not Met. 

Review by the Supreme Court is discretionary and only 

appropriate if one ofthe criteria set forth in RAP 13.4(b) are met. For the 

reasons set forth herein, none of the considerations governing acceptance 

of review are present in this case regarding those issues Petitioner raises in 

his Petition for Review. 

B. The Appellate Rulings Which Petitioner Seeks to Appeal Are in 
Accord with Existing Law and Present No Issue Satisfying RAP 
13.4. 

1. The Appellate Court's Denial of Double Damages Under 
RCW 49.52.050 and .070 Is in Accord with the Law. 

RCW 49.52.050 establishes liability on the part of an employer who 

fails to pay a wage they are obligated to pay an employee. Washington 

courts have previously examined when the obligation to pay a wage arises 

for purposes of awarding double damages pursuant to RCW 49.52.070. 

Once the obli-gation to pay can be shown, the next inquiry is whether the 

employer willfully failed to fulfill the obligation. As in Hemmings v. 

Tidyman's Inc., the ninth circuit held that the term obligation reflected an 

obligation to pay wages which preceded a jury verdict. Hemmings, 285 

F.3d 1174, 1203 (9th Cir. 2002). For example, an individual working nine 

hours while being paid for eight would be entitled to payment for the 
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additional hour worked under RCW 49.52.050 and, assuming the employer 

was aware of the obligation which it willfully failed to fulfill, double 

damages pursuant to RCW 49.52.070. 

Though counsel argues that Allstot provides for a different result, 

the opinion's holding is mischaracterized. Allstot v. Edwards, 114 

Wn.App. 625, 60 P.3d 601 (2002). In Allstot, the employee had actually 

worked for the employer and the verdict potentially contained wages owed 

which accrued during the employee's employment as well as damages 

awarded under Washington's Law Against Discrimination. The trial and 

appellate courts' holding in this case is in accord with Hemming and 

Allstot as it is undisputed that Clipse never commenced working for CDS. 

(RP August 21, 2013 pp. 24-26; 82:20-84:9). Shilling provides no 

additional support for Petitioner's position. Shilling v. Radio Holdings 

Inc., 136 Wn.2d 152, 961 P .2d 3 71 (1998). Shilling reiterates the policy 

articulated in Allstot and Hemming, stating that Ch. 49.52 RCW, 

·'indicates a strong legislative intent to assure payment to employees of 

wages they have earned.'' Shilling, 136 Wn.2d at 159 (emphasis 

supplied). Here, Clipse did not earn any wages that could be withheld 

(wrongfully or otherwise) because he never worked for CDS for a single 

second. 
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The appellate court's holding also makes sense from a policy 

perspective. Litigants who recover under RCW 49.52.070 have shown 

that the employer willfully paid them less than the wages they were owed. 

An employer in such a situation is aware of the obligation to pay because 

the employee is actually working, but ignores or otherwise fails to fulfill 

the obligation to pay its employee wages. Under Ch. 49.60 RCW, the 

obligation to pay back wages does not arise until the jury reaches a 

verdict. Consequently, from the inception of the act giving rise to the suit 

until the jury's verdict, the employer could not possibly be willfully 

withholding wages they are obligated to pay as there is no obligation until 

the jury reaches a verdict. Allstot v. Edwards, 114 Wn.App. 625, 60 P.3d 

60 I (2002). It would not make sense to pennit additional damages in a 

scenario where the employer is powerless to correct the double damages 

wage aspect of the claim prior to the jury's verdict. 

Further illustrating the absurdity of this position is attempting to 

analyze a method by which an employer could eliminate double damages 

under RCW 49.52.070 by fulfilling the alleged obligation to pay where the 

sole basis for the back pay was Ch. 49.60 RCW. It is obvious there is no 

way for an employer in such a circumstance to comply with the as yet 

unknown mandate of the jury prior to trial. This also demonstrates that the 
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position advocated by Petitioner 1s not m accord with the policy 

underpinning Ch. 49.52 RCW. 

2. The Appellate Court Properly Found that the Trial Court 
Did Not Abuse Its Discretion in Striking Clipse's Motion 
for Fees and RAP 13.4 is Not Implicated by the Court's 
Ruling. 

Clipse petitions this court on various grounds to reverse the 

appellate court's ruling upholding the striking of his fee motion by the trial 

court. The standard of review for this decision is abuse of discretion. 

Davies v. Holy Family Hosp., 144 Wn.App. 483, 499, 183 P.3d 283 

(2008). As the appellate court acknowledges, the trial court's ruling was 

not legally or factually flawed and is not one that no responsible person 

would make. Salas v. Hi-Tech Erectors, 168 Wn.2d 664, 669, 230 P.3d 

583 (201 0). As such the ruling should stand and does not meet the criteria 

for Supreme Court review outlined in RAP 13.4. 

The appellate court, as did the trial court, considered Clipse's basis 

for his late filing and held that it failed to amount to excusable neglect. 

(Clipse v. Commercial Driver Services, Inc., at pp. 7-10,2015 WL 502338 

(Div. II, Aug. 25, 2015)). Attorney's fees and expenses may be requested 

under CR 54(d)(2) which provides: 

Claims for attorneys' fees and expenses, other than costs 
and disbursement, shall be made by motion unless the 
substantive law governing the action provides for the 
recovery of such fees and expenses as an element of 
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damages to be proved at trial. Unless otherwise provided 
by statute or order of the court, the motion must be filed no 
later than I 0 days after entry of judgment. 

CR 54(d)(2). Accordingly, under CR 54(d)(2), a motion for attorney's 

fees and expenses was timely filed only if it was filed on or before 

September 9, 2013 (the tenth day following entry of judgment fell on a 

Saturday, therefore, Clipse had until the following Monday to timely file 

the motion); the motion was not filed until September 11, 2013. (CP 474). 

The colloquy at the time the judgment was discussed in detail by 

the trial court when evaluating the motion to strike and is devoid of any 

discussion regarding extension of time to file a fee motion. (RP September 

20,2013 pp. 8:9-19; 9:4-11; 19-22). Essentially, Clipse's ar!:,TUment is that 

CDS (and the Court) acquiesced to some indeterminate timeline for filing 

the motion for fees as a result of the amount of costs and attorney's fees 

being "reserved'' in the judgment. (CP 474). As the trial court correctly 

noted, there was no discussion of any alteration of time for filing any 

motion and no subsequent motion made to extend the time for filing. (RP 

September 20, 2013 pp. 8:9-19; 9:4-11; 19-22). Arguably, the trial court, 

in its discretion, could accept a late filing based upon a showing of 

excusable neglect. Cohen v. Sting!, 51 Wn.2d 866, 868, 322 P.2d 873 

(1958); CR 6(b)(2). 
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The trial court and the appellate court had available briefing which 

addressed the issue of prejudice, among other issues presented by the late 

tiling by Clipse. Washington courts have noted that refusal to accept late 

filings have occurred where the showing of prejudice was slight or non-

existent, ''the responding party [to an assertion of excusable neglect] can 

rarely show actual prejudice because the prejudice is to the system and an 

extension of time undermines the finality of the judgment.'' Pybas v. 

Paolino, 73 Wn.App. 393, 403, 869 P.2d 427 (1994). Despite the fact that 

Clipse argued this was the primary aspect of CDS's prejudice, the trial 

court nonetheless did not find excusable neglect. Id. The case of State v. 

Cline, 21 Wn.App. 720, 586 P .2d 545 (1978) is instructive. In Cline, the 

defense inadvertently "forgot" to note the time for appeal after trial and 

filed the notice of appeal late. As a result, the appeal (which was filed one 

date late) was dismissed. I d. at 721. As these cases reflecting dismissals 

or refusals to accept late filings show, the trial court's ruling was clearly 

within the discretion of the trial court and in accord with Washington's 

case law. In this case, CDS also argued that there was prejudice relating 

to the possibility of an appeal.3 Should a litigant appeal, frequently a stay 

is sought which must be secured by cash on deposit with the court or a 

3 At the time of the motion to strike no appeal had yet been filed; however, ultimately, an 
appeal was filed which did in fact result in a deposit into the registry of the trial court of 
an amount in excess of the judgment. Had the fee motion been heard, the amount of the 
deposit would have incorporated the amount of any fees and costs awarded. RAP 8.1 (b). 
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bond. RAP 8.1. The amount of such a bond takes into account the 

principal of the judgment. Anticipated fees on appeal are also part of the 

analysis. which will also be informed by a party's fee petition. RAP 

8.1 (c). Meaningful arrangements for a bond necessarily depend upon the 

amount of money involved. RAP 8.1 (c). Thus, the delay in filing does 

prejudice CDS and its ability to make such arrangements to the 

satisfaction of the court under RAP 8.1. 

Clipse attempts to bolster his appeal by stating that the appellate 

court failed to consider prejudice when upholding the trial court's 

decision. However, the appellate court's decision is not worthy of review 

pursuant to RAP 13.4 simply because the appellate court failed to reiterate 

the exact analysis of the trial court. Under the abuse of discretion 

standard, the question is whether the trial court conducted the analysis 

required under the law. As the appellate court decision reflects, the trial 

court did conduct the proper legal and factual analysis, "The trial court did 

not abuse its discretion by denying Clipse's motion to enlarge time under 

CR 6(b). The trial court's decision was not legally or factually flawed, nor 

was it one that no reasonable person would take." (Clipse v. Commercial 

Driver Services, Inc., at p. 10,2015 WL 502338 (Div. II, Aug. 25, 2015)). 

Unlike, de novo review, the appellate court does not review the decision as 

if the trial court's ruling did not exist, but to determine whether the trial 
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court's decision met the abuse of discretion standard. Consequently, the 

appellate court's reasoning is not flawed merely because the appellate 

court did not review the trial com1's decision de novo. This is essentially 

what Petitioner requests, which is not the applicable standard of review. 

Salas, 168 Wn.2d at 669. Consequently, no issue is presented by the trial 

court or appellate court's analysis which satisfies RAP 13 .4. 

The record below reflects that the trial court considered the law, 

assertions of prejudice, counsel's admission that he was aware of the time 

requirements under CR 54(d)(2), and Clipse's repeated assertions that the 

late filing occurred because the court and opposing counsel failed to 

understand what was unilaterally intended by "reserved". (RP September 

20, 2013 pp. 19:18-25, 20:1-24, 22: 12-22). The trial court clearly did not 

abuse its discretion in striking Clipse's motion for costs and fees based on 

its review of the hearing,_ counsel's arguments, and the trial court's 

repeated invitations to counsel to explore the parameters of Clipse's 

alleged showing of excusable neglect. (RP September 20, 2013 pp. 1 9: 18-

25, 20:1-24, 22: 12-22). Nor should the decision of the appellate court be 

subject to further review because the appellate court, properly, did not 

conduct a de novo review where the standard of review is abuse of 

discretion. 
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V. CONCLUSION 

The appellate court ruled properly on the issues before it which 

Petitioner seeks to review. The appellate court decision is in accord with 

and does not conflict with the existing case law in any respect. Further, no 

significant question of law is raised by the Petition. Finally, no issue of 

substantial public interest is implicated because the ruling is in accord 

with established and existing case law. This Court should not accept the 

Petition for Discretionary Review as the criteria set forth by RAP l3.4(b) 

are not met.